


  ANNEX A 
 

 
ANSWERS TO QUERIES FROM PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS AND INTERESTED PARTICIPANTS 

 

 Date Prospective Bidder/ 
Interested 
Participant 

Question Submitted PBAC Response 

1 2/14/2013 Sycip, Salazar, 
Hernandez & 
Gatmaitan 

Please confirm that, where the Prospective Bidder is a Consortium: 
 
"(i) it is permitted for a Consortium Member to form a holding 
company or a subsidiary that would then hold its interest in the 
Consortium or , following incorporation, its equity participation in the 
Concessionaire; 
 
(ii) it is permitted for some (but not all) Consortium Members to form a 
holding company or a subsidiary that would then hold their collective 
interest in the Consortium or, following incorporation, their collective 
equity participation in the Concessionaire; and 
 
(iii) the formation of a holding company or a subsidiary may be made 
(1) after Pre-Qualification but before Bid Proposals Submission Date; or 
(2) after the Prospective Bidder has been declared the Winning Bidder 
but before the signing of the concession agreement" 

(i) A Consortium Member may form a 
holding company or a subsidiary that 
would then hold its entire interest in 
the Consortium or, following its 
incorporation, in the Project SPC. 

(ii) It is not permitted for some Consortium 
Members to form a holding company or 
subsidiary that would then hold their 
collective interests in the Consortium 
or, following incorporation, their 
collective equity interest in the Project 
SPC. However, in the event that all 
Consortium Members shall form such 
holding company or subsidiary, the 
same shall be allowed. 

(iii) Subject to the above qualifications, 
the formation of a holding company or 
a subsidiary may be made (1) after Pre-
Qualification but before Bid Proposals 
Submission Date; or (2) after the 
Prospective Bidder has been declared 
the Winning Bidder but before the 
signing of the concession agreement.  
 

Please be guided that if the formation of a 
holding company is made at any time after Pre-
Qualification but before Bid Proposals 
Submission Date, the same shall be considered 
a change in the composition of the Consortium 
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and are subject to the approval of the PBAC, as 
provided under Section V-06 (iv). The 
Consortium and the Consortium Members must 
thus follow the procedure provided under 
Section V-06 (v). Notwithstanding Section V-06, 
paragraph 1, if the change is made after the 
Prospective Bidder has been declared the 
Winning Bidder but before the signing of the 
concession agreement, the same must be 
approved by the PBAC following the procedure 
provided under Section V-06 (v). Any change 
made at any time after the signing of the 
Concession Agreement, shall be allowed, 
without prejudice to the application of the 
pertinent provisions of the Concession 
Agreement. 
 
In all cases, all limitations and restrictions 
applicable to the Consortium Members with 
respect to their interest in the Project SPC shall 
continue to apply to each of the Consortium 
Members irrespective of the Holding structure 
they enter into. 
 

2 2/14/2013 Changi Airports 
International Pte. 
Ltd. 

Under the current definition of "Airline-Related Entity", will CAI be 
considered an "Airline-Related Entity" due to the state ownership of 
Singapore Airlines Limited?  

A specific response is not possible based on 
details provided. However, by way of guidance, 
assuming that CAI and Singapore Airline Limited 
are under the common ownership of the 
Government of Singapore such that the 
Government of Singapore has Control as 
defined under the ITPB, then CAI shall qualify as 
an Airline-Related Entity.  
 
Please note that the definition of an Airline-
Related Entity does not distinguish based on 



  ANNEX A 
 

whether such Airline-Related Entity is owned by 
a private corporation or by a Government. 

3 2/14/2013 Megawide 
Engineering 

Please confirm that even though a certain group is identified with 2 
Prospective Bidders, this does not automatically disqualify either 
bidder, if one Prospective Bidder is not an affiliate or does not own at 
least 20% of the other Prospective Bidder. Stated differently, mere 
identification with a certian group is not a ground for disqualification 
based on conflict of interest. 
 
Furthermore, please also confirm that in case of a disqualification for 
an apparent conflict of interest, only the Prospective Bidder that has 
an equity interest in another Prospective Bidder, as defined under this 
provision, shall be disqualified from the bidding and disqualification 
shall not extend to the Prospective Bidder in whom the other 
Prospective Bidder has an interest. 

The question is vague and for which a reason, 
an adequate response cannot be provided. 
Should sufficient details be submitted by the 
querist, the PBAC will endeavor to respond and 
provide necessary guidance.  
 

4 2/14/2013 Megawide 
Engineering 

With respect to interlocking directors, please confirm that the fact that 
a person sits on the board of 2 or more prospective bidders, any 
consortium member or their affiliates does not automatically 
constitute a conflict of interest if said director is not directly involved in 
the bidding process. In relation to this, please clarify what would 
constitute "directly involved in any capacity related to the Bidding 
Process". 

The assessment shall be based on specific facts 
of the case. With respect to Section V-04 (d) of 
the ITPB, without limiting the discretion of the 
PBAC to determine what constitutes Conflict of 
Interest, direct involvement shall mean actual 
participation in the deliberations and decision-
making for the bidding process of the 
Prospective Bidder that would give the director 
knowledge / information regarding the bid of 
such Prospective Bidder. 
 

5 2/14/2013 Megawide 
Engineering 

If the entity whose experience is being submitted in fulfillment of the 
Development Experience possessed both ISO Certifications 9001 and 
14001, should the nominated Construction Contractors need to 
possess ISO Certifications 9001 and 14001? 
 
 

Yes, the nominated Construction Contractor 
needs to possess the required ISO 
Certifications. 
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6 2/14/2013 GMR Infrastructure 
Limited 

If the document was issued by a foreign authority, the Prospective 
Bidder should also submit a certified true copy of such document 
issued by such authority, in addition to the authentication by the 
relevant Philippine consular official. As discussed during the pre-
qualification conference on 13th Feb 2013. 
 
Kindly confirm that consularisation is not required for the documents 
to be submitted for prequalification issued by a foreign authority.  

We refer you to the response to query number 
21 and 23 in SBB No. 05-2013. 
 

7 2/14/2013 GMR Infrastructure 
Limited 

Kindly confirm that it is not mandatory to hire the D&E contractor and 
construction sub-contractor from the same list, submitted for the 
purpose of qualification. 

As per BOT Law IRR, Section 5.4 b (i) and the 
relevant provisions of the Instructions to 
Prospective Bidders, the Prospective Bidder will 
have to select the D&E Contractor from the 
shortlist of at most five contractors. 
 

8 2/14/2013 GMR Infrastructure 
Limited 

As per format 2, each entities within the consortium and entities 
mentioned in form QA 1B, have to provide beneficiary ownership 
details for each entities up to the level of 5% ownership. 
 
Does it mean the prospective bidder / consortium members should 
provide the details up to the level of individual owners or would it be 
sufficient if the details are given up to the level of corporate entities?  

Refer to response to query number 5 in SBB No. 
04-2013 
 

9 2/14/2013 GMR Infrastructure 
Limited 

Construction subcontractors should submit "A valid license issued by 
the Philippine Contractors Accreditation Board (PCAB) for Large B 
Classification / License Category AAA, in the case the Prospective 
Bidder is a Filipino entity, or by an equivalent accreditation institution 
in the Prospective Bidder's country of origin, in the case of a foreign 
entity, provided that such foreign entity must secure a license and 
accreditation from the PCAB after the Winning Bidder is awarded the 
Project". However, in India, there is no such system of providing 
licenses to construction companies. 
 
We request DOTC to waive this requirement for a foreign construction 
contractor as long as he provides the other certificates as mentioned in 
the document and secures licenses from PCAB after winning the 
project.  

The request is not granted. 
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10 2/14/2013 GMR Infrastructure 
Limited 

Exchange Rate for the purpose of converting values in other currencies 
to Philippine Pesos will be the exchange rate specified by "Bangko 
Sentral ng Pilipinas" on a date 60 days prior to the Pre-Qualification 
Documents Submission Date. 
 
Since the submission dates are changing, we suggest that DOTC may 
specify a particular reference date.  

The Pre-Qualification Documents Submission 
Date can be considered as March 22, 2013 for 
the purpose of this requirement. 
 

11 2/14/2013 GMR Infrastructure 
Limited 

In the Format QD 7 i.e. certificate of O&M experience, prospective 
bidder has to mention the cost of contract. 
 
Since our projects are on BOOT model, there is no separate project 
cost for O&M. We request you to amend this format accordingly.  

Response to the relevant field can be marked 
as "Not Applicable" along with relevant 
supporting reason / rationale. 
 

12 2/14/2013 GMR Infrastructure 
Limited 

In the Format QD 2 (General Information Sheet) & QD 4A (Absence of 
unsatisfactory performance) & QD 13 (O&M Experience) in case of 
affiliates, please clarify that whether these documents are to be signed 
by Authorized Representative of consortium member or CEO of 
affiliates.  

Annex QD-2 and QD-4A need to be signed by 
the Authorized Representative of the 
Consortium Member and Annex QD-13 needs 
to be signed by the Auditor. 
 

13 2/14/2013 MPIC Following the issuance of SBB  No. 03-2013 and the Amendment to the 
ITPB, Affiliate means "a person which, alone or together with any other 
person, is effectively Controlled by, or Controls, is under common 
Control with another person." 
 
In this regard, the use of the phrase "with any other person" for 
purposes of determining an Affiliate relationship appears to be quite 
broad. As presently worded, a person or entity holding 1% equity 
interest in another company would, if taken together with any other 
shareholder of the same company holding at least 50% equity interest, 
be considered as an Affiliate, regardless of whether or not these 
shareholders have any legal agreement between them or may be 
considered as Affiliates. 
 
Given that the conflict of interest provision uses the term Affiliate, 
please confirm our understanding that two or more persons may only 
be considered together for purposes of determining an Affiliate 

Please be guided that two or more persons may 
be considered together for purposes of 
determining an Affiliate relationship where: (i) 
such persons are Affiliates of each other; (ii) 
such persons have a legal agreement among 
them that reasonably supports aggregation of 
their interests; or (iii) such persons have an 
arrangement with similar effect. Furthermore, 
under the definition of Control, ownership of 
the shares in a corporation, shares held both 
directly or indirectly will be counted. 
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relationship where (1) such persons are considered Affiliates of each 
other; or (2) such persons have a legal agreement or arrangement 
among them that would justify the aggregation of their interests. 

14 2/14/2013 MPIC Given the desire of the PBAC to encourage participation to increase the 
competitiveness of the bidding process, please extend the 
Qualification Documents Submission Date to at least March 15, 2013. 

Please see GBB No. 05-2013. 

15 2/14/2013 First Philippine 
Holdings Inc. 

Please clarify whether certification on capital costs will be sole basis to 
determine if a Prospective Bidder has “satisfactorily undertaken 
development” of the Eligible Projects.  Are there other considerations 
in reviewing this qualification other than capital costs? Should the 
Prospective Bidder submit documents/information other than those 
required in Annexes QD-5 and QD-II to establish satisfactory 
development of Eligible Projects? 
 
Please clarify definition of capital cost. 

Documents to be submitted in the minimum 
have been specified in the ITPB. 
In common financial parlance, Capital costs 
relate to amounts spent for purchases / 
creation of fixed assets and associated goods 
and services. For the purpose of the 
Application, the potential bidders should 
submit information pertaining to such costs in 
the minimum. Potential bidders can also 
instead submit Project Cost (also including 
costs pertaining to Insurance, Interest During 
Construction, Financing, etc.) as certified by the 
Auditor towards this requirement. 
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16 2/14/2013 First Philippine 
Holdings Inc. 

Please confirm the following:  
 
1. Will the disputes of Affiliates which will not be used by the 
Consortium in qualifying for the bid be considered in determining 
unsatisfactory performance? 
 
2. Will disputes with foreign entities/governments be included? 
 
3. Will disputes concerning non-airport related projects and contracts 
be included in determining Unsatisfactory Performance? 
 
4. For items (2) and (3) on expulsion or termination/suspension, 
respectively, of projects or contracts, will be apply to any project or 
contract, or only to projects or contracts that are submitted to meet 
Technical Qualification requirements? 
 
5. Will the expulsion, termination or suspension of contract be 
considered Unsatisfactory Performance even if the same is being 
validly disputed (either by litigation, arbitration or some other form of 
dispute resolution mechanism) without final judgment or award yet? 
 
6. With respect to item (4) on material violation of laws and/or 
regulations:  
 
a. Does this cover foreign laws? 
 
b. Does the certification on Absence of Unsatisfactory Performance 
Record Allow the insertion of a “to the best of knowledge” qualifier 
since the Consortium Member or Prospective Bidder may not 
necessarily know that it is in material violation of all laws applicable to 
the project or contract? 
 
c. Is a judicial, administrative or arbitral ruling, decision or award 
necessary before a Prospective Bidder or Consortium Member can be 
held in material violation of a law or regulation applicable to the 

1. In determining Unsatisfactory Performance, 
the disputes of those who will submit Annex 
QD4B shall be considered. Annex QD 4B is only 
submitted by the Consortium Members, and 
their Affiliates as identified in the Business 
Structure Annex QD 1B (whose experience is 
being used to fulfill requirements) including the 
proposed Subcontractors. Further, in case the 
qualification experience is being brought by an 
Affiliate, the entities through which the Affiliate 
relationship is established with the Prospective 
Bidder or a Consortium Member must likewise 
submit Annex QD 4A/4B. For example, if a 
Consortium Member X has an Affiliate Y having 
an Affiliate Z, and the experience of Z is being 
used to satisfy the qualification requirements, 
all X, Y and Z have to submit the form Annex 
QD-4A / QD-4B. 
 
2. We confirm the same if the dispute with 
foreign entities/governments qualify as any of 
the Unsatisfactory Performance events as 
specified in Annex QD-4A or Annex QD-4B. 
 
3. We confirm. As provided in Annex QD-4A or 
Annex QD-4B, the projects and contracts 
referred thereto refers to any project or 
contract of the entity or entities whose 
experience is being used to meet any of the 
Technical Qualification Requirements which 
was commenced or in the process of 
implementation within the last five (5) years 
before the Qualification Documents Submission 
Date, and not just to the particular projects or 
contracts being submitted to meet such 
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project or contract? 
 
Before a termination of contract or violation of law is considered 
“Unsatisfactory Performance”, a final judgment issued through judicial, 
quasi-judicial, administrative or arbitration proceedings, or other form 
of dispute resolution should be obtained.  If a termination of contract 
or violation of law is being contested in good faith by a Consortium 
Member or any entity whose experience will be used to meet 
Technical Qualification requirements, the alleged termination or 
violation should not be considered Unsatisfactory Performance. 

Technical Qualification Requirements. 
 
4. We confirm. As provided in Annex QD-4A or 
Annex QD-4B, the projects and contracts 
referred thereto refers to any project or 
contract of the entity or entities whose 
experience is being used to meet any of the 
Technical Qualification Requirements which 
was commenced or in the process of 
implementation within the last five (5) years 
before the Qualification Documents Submission 
Date, and not just to the particular projects or 
contracts being submitted to meet such 
Technical Qualification Requirements. 
 
5. The PBAC reserves the right to determine 
whether the same shall be considered as 
Unsatisfactory Performance based on the 
information to be disclosed by the Prospective 
Bidder. 
 
6.  
a. Since the ITPB does not provide any 
qualification, material violation of laws and/or 
regulations shall cover foreign laws. 
 
b. We refer you to the revised Annex QD-4A 
and QD-4B. 
 
c. No. If the material violation of a law or 
regulation applicable to the project or contract 
is made on record, whether the same is 
contested or not, then such will constitute as 
an Unsatisfactory Performance.  
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17 2/7/2013 Malaysia Airports 
Holdings Berhad  

We refer to the following definitions of Section VI-03 on pages 31 and 
32 of the ITPB and item number 13 of the Amended ITPB: 
 
"Affiliate" means a corporation or entity effectively Controlled by or 
Controlling the Prospective Bidder or associated with the Prospective 
Bidder under common ownership and Control. 
 
"Control" is defined as, "for purposes of defining an Affiliate, the 
power to direct or cause the direction of the management policies and 
actions of a body corporate whether through: (i) ownership of at least 
fifty percent (50%) plus one share of the total outstanding voting 
shares or (ii) ownership of at least twenty percent (20%) of the 
outstanding voting shares and (a) possession of at least fifty percent 
(50%) plus one share of the voting rights through voting trust or other 
voting agreements entered into at least one year before the 
Qualification Documents Submission Date or (b) the ability to elect a 
majority of the members of the Affiliate’s board of directors or (iii) a 
legal agreement entered into at least one year before the Qualification 
Documents Submission Date. 
 
In determining ownership of the shares in a corporation, shares held 
both directly and indirectly will be counted." 
 
“Airline-Related Entity” is an individual, partnership, corporation, or 
any other juridical entity that: (1) Is an Airline; or (2) Is an Affiliate of an 
Airline. 
 
Based on the definitions above, we believe that MAHB is not an 
Affiliate of Malaysian Airline System Berhad ("MAS") as it is not under 
the common ownership and Control of Khazanah Nasional Berhad 
("Khazana"). Hence, we would like to seek your confirmation on behalf 
of the PBAC that:  
 
1. MAHB does not qualify as an Airline-Related Entity as defined in the 
Amended ITPB;  

Based on details presented by the querist, 
affiliation is not established. However, such 
determination will be subject to formal 
evaluation by PBAC after submission of 
Qualification documents.  
 
Furthermore, please be guided that the 
reference to “under common ownership or 
interest” in the Subject Pre-Qualification 
Criterion would apply to any percentage of 
ownership or interest, regardless of whether or 
not such percentage of ownership is owned by 
a foreign government or by a private 
corporation. 
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2. MAHB is not restricted from owning more than 33% of the total 
equity in the Consortium and Project SPC (and may own up to 40% 
based on the prevailing foreign ownership limitations); and 
3. MAHB is entitled to enter into a Consortium with an Airline-Relate 
Entity whereby the Airline-Related Entity could own up to 33% of the 
total equity in the Consortium and Project SPC and MAHB could own 
up to 40% of the total equity in the Consortium and Project SPC. 

18 2/12/2013 Vinci Airports During our review of [the ITPB] it occurs to us that it is very rarely an 
airport that directly involves itself in the process that is described 
therein. Moreover participation is generally by the privately owned 
airport management companies (and / or societies) that hold the right 
to manage and operate the airports. These management companies 
have normally acquired the right to manage or operate through the 
award of a Concession (granted by the governing public body or 
Government) or by the acquisition of shares (normally a controlling 
share of 51%) in the previously publicly owned company managing the 
airport. The nature of these privately owned management companies 
is that they normally seek to continually expand their portfolio and 
network and thus are regularly changing the size and nature of their 
network. 
 
It is for this reason that we would like to specifically draw your 
attention to the definition of “Affiliate” in the IOPB at VI-03a. which 
states the following: 
 
“Affiliate” means a corporation or entity effectively Controlled by or 
Controlling the Prospective Bidder or associated with the Prospective 
Bidder under common ownership and Control. 
 
In our view this definition would allow for an airport management 
company to consider a newly acquired asset in their portfolio to be 
considered an Affiliate once the Share Purchase Agreement defining 
this acquisition had been signed. We would kindly ask that you confirm 
our understanding to be correct. 

The question is vague and for which a reason, 
an adequate response cannot be provided. 
Should sufficient details be submitted by the 
querist, the PBAC will endeavor to respond and 
provide necessary guidance.  
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19 2/14/2013 Aboitizland, Inc. That a joint venture company (incorporated) formed by and composed 
of two (2) or more Consortium Members, with one of the parties 
having purchased the Invitation Documents (consisting of the 
Invitation to Pre-qualify and Bid. the ITPB and its Annexes. and the 
Project Background) may participate in the Pre-qualification and the 
Bidding Process for the Project 

Yes. 

20 2/14/2013 Aboitizland, Inc. That a Consortium of two (2) or more members which has been pre-
qualified to bid and which forms and comprises a joint venture 
company (incorporated) after the Consortium has been pre-qualified 
may participate in the Bidding Process for the Project as such 
incorporated joint venture company 

Yes. 

21 2/14/2013 Aboitizland, Inc. That a purchaser of the Invitation Documents can assign the benefits of 
such purchase to a joint venture company (incorporated) that will be 
formed by the purchaser with its partners 

Yes. 

22 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would the Construction Contractor be required to submit any 
Development Experience under the Technical Qualification 
Requirements? If so, would the Construction Contractor need to fill 
forms QD-4A, QD-4B, QD-5, and QD-11? 

The Construction Contractor is not required to 
submit any Development Experience. Forms 
QD-5 and QD-11 are required to be submitted 
by the entity fulfilling Development Experience 
requirement. Form QD-4A/ 4B are required to 
be submitted by the entities listed in all 
sections of Business Structure (Annex QD-1A/ 
1B). 
 

23 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Who’s the Development Experience, Construction Contractor or 
Prospective Bidder (other than the Construction Contractor) fulfills 
Section 2.a.5. as stated in page 13? 

Please refer to Section I-09 2.a.2 for the entity, 
which needs to fulfills the requirement of 
Development Experience. 
Construction Contractor needs to be proposed 
as a separate technical requirement under 
Section I-09 2.a.5. 
 



  ANNEX A 
 

24 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T What is the relationship between the Consortium Member proposing 
the "Development Experience" and the Construction Contractors 
fulfilling the requirement? Should this role be undertaken by the same 
party or affiliated companies?  

The entity being proposed to meet the 
Development Experience needs to fulfill the 
requirement under Section I-09 2.a.1 and 
Section I-09 2.a.2. 
Construction Contractor needs to be proposed 
as a separate technical requirement under 
Section I-09 2.a.5. 
The role of consortium member fulfilling 
Development Experience and Construction 
Contractor may be undertaken by the same 
entity. However, in such scenario, the entity 
would need to satisfy the qualification 
requirements for both Development 
Experience as well as Construction Contractor. 
Also, the entity would need to satisfy the lock-
up rule requirements pertaining to Consortium 
Member bringing the Development Experience. 
 

25 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Could the Construction Contractor undertake an investment role? 
What are the restrictions or lock-up rules applicable in this case? 

Construction Contractor is allowed to take up 
investment role in the consortium.  
 
The lock-up rules are specified in Sections V-05 
and V-06 with respect to entity designated as 
the Lead Member of the Consortium as well as 
entities bringing in specific technical and 
financial experience.  
 

26 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would the Construction Contractor be required to undertake a 33 
1/3% equity interest of both voting and non-voting shares in the 
Project SPV if it, the Construction Contractor, is a consortium member 
and also provides the Development Experience? 

Please see response to query 24. 

27 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Could the Construction Contractor undertake an equity interest below 
the 33 1/3% and also propose the "Development Experience”? 

Please see response to query 24. 
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28 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would a consortium member undertaking an equity interest less than 
33 1/3% not nominate its Development Experience while still being 
proposed as a Construction Contractor be permitted per ITPB Section 
V5 and V6, pages 27 and 28, clauses 2.a.2 and 2.a.5? 

Yes. 
 

29 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would a consortium member being proposed as a Construction 
Contractor but undertaking an equity interest below 33 1/3% be 
subject to any lock-up rules during the qualification period? What rule 
would that be?  

The lock-up rules during the bidding process 
are applicable to the Lead Member as well as 
the entities fulfilling experiences as per Section 
V-05.  
 

30 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would a consortium member being proposed as a Construction 
Contractor but undertaking an equity interest below 33 1/3% be 
subject to any lock-up rules during the concession period? What rule 
would that be?  

The lock-up rules during the concession period 
are applicable to the Lead Member as well as 
the entities fulfilling experiences as per Section 
V-06.  
 

31 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Which licenses does the RFQ refer to?  Does this refer to a local license 
or to an international equivalent? 

Please refer to the response to Query Number 
2 in SBB 04-2013 

32 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Could companies fulfilling the Design and Engineering Experience 
submit along with difference consortia?  

Yes, subject to Section III-01 

33 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Does the 10 years of experience relate to the minimum time for the 
key personnel in the solicited role?  

Yes. 

34 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Could projects which have been managed simultaneously be 
considered as "eligible experience”? 

Yes.  

35 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would bridges be considered as infrastructure and therefore eligible 
projects?  

Yes. 

36 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would a project be considered as eligible if it is on-going?  Yes. Please refer to the response to Query 
Number 11 in SBB 04-201 

37 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Which update version does this paragraph refer to?  Under Section VI-03 (j), BOT Law refers to 
Republic Act No. 6957, as amended by Republic 
Act No. 7718, entitled "An Act Authorizing the 
Financing, Construction, Operation and 
Maintenance of Infrastructure Projects by the 
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Private Sector and for Other Purposes," and its 
Revised Implementing Rules and Regulations 
("Revised IRR"), which refers to the Revised IRR 
published on 20 July 2012 and made effective 
fifteen (15) days therefrom (4 August 2012). 
Copy is available at the following link: 
http://ppp.gov.ph/?p=375. 
 

38 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Which aeronautical as well as non-aeronautical sources would the 
winning consortium be entitled to? 

This query pertains to the next stage of the 
Bidding Process (Instructions to Bidders). 
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AMENDMENT TO THE INSTRUCTIONS TO PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS 

 

 Section Original Provision Amended Provision 

1 Section V-02  A new paragraph is inserted as Paragraph (f') before 
paragraph (g): 
 
"f') any Outstanding Dispute with government as defined in 
Section VI-03." 
 
The definition of Outstanding Dispute is inserted in Section 
VI-03 as Paragraph f' before paragraph ff: 
 
For purposes of Section V-02 (f'), an “Outstanding Dispute” 
with government refers to any pending judicial, administrative 
or alternative dispute resolution proceeding, including 
suspension or blacklisting proceedings, between the 
Prospective Bidder, any Consortium Members or any 
Affiliates or contractors proposed by the Prospective Bidder, 
on the one hand, and the national government, any of its 
offices, agencies or instrumentalities, or any government-
owned or controlled corporation, arising out of, or in 
connection with any bidding, project or contract of the 
national government, any of its instrumentalities or any 
government-owned or controlled corporation which is 
intended to provide a critical basic necessity and/or is of 
paramount public interest and importance. The PBAC may, 
upon judicious consideration and diligent study of the facts 
and circumstances surrounding such dispute, determine that 
it does not pose an impediment to the successful 
implementation of the Project. 
  

2 Section V-04 (b) b) a Prospective Bidder, any Consortium Member, or any 
of their Affiliates (of either a Prospective Bidder or of the 
Consortium Member) is proposed as a Subcontractor of 
another Prospective Bidder; 

Section V-04 (b) is marked "Deleted" 
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3 SectionV-05 (b)  A new paragraph is inserted as Paragraph (iv-1) before 
paragraph (iv): 
 
(iv-1) A Consortium Member may form a holding company or 
a subsidiary which would hold its entire interest in the 
Consortium. All Consortium Members may form a holding 
company or subsidiary which would hold their collective 
interests in the Consortium. All limitations and restrictions 
applicable to the Consortium Members with respect to their 
interest in the Project SPC shall continue to apply to each of 
the Consortium Members irrespective of the Holding structure 
they enter into. 
 

4 Section V-06 No changes shall be allowed in the shareholder or equity 
structure of the Winning Bidder from Bid Proposals 
Submission Date until the signing by the Project SPC of 
the accession agreement to the Concession Agreement.  
XXX 
 

No changes shall be allowed in the shareholder or equity 
structure of the Winning Bidder from Bid Proposals 
Submission Date until the signing by the Project SPC of the 
accession agreement to the Concession Agreement. 
However, a Consortium Member of the Winning Bidder may 
form a holding company or a subsidiary which would hold its 
entire interest in the Winning Bidder. All Consortium 
Members may form a holding company or subsidiary which 
would hold their collective interests in the Winning Bidder. All 
limitations and restrictions applicable to the Consortium 
Members with respect to their interest in the Project SPC 
shall continue to apply to each of the Consortium Members 
irrespective of the Holding structure they enter into.  
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ANNEX QD-4A: Notarized Certification of Absence of Unsatisfactory Performance 

Record 

 
a. To be accomplished individually by the authorized representative of each of the 

Prospective Bidder and the entities listed in all sections of the Business Structure (Annex 
QD-1A or QD-1B) or jointly by theirauthorized representative designated in Annexes 
QD-10A and QD-10B. 
 

b. Entities which are proposed to meet the Financial Qualification Requirement, the 
certification shall only be in relation to (i) non-inclusion in a blacklist issued by any 
governmental agency of the Philippines or in the Debarred and Cross-Debarred Firms & 
Individuals list posted in the World Bank website (www.worldbank.org/debarr), whether 
as an individual contractor, partnership, corporation, or any other juridical entity, or as a 
member of a joint venture or consortium, and (ii) non-involvement in any Corrupt, 
Fraudulent, Coercive, Undesirable, or Restrictive Practice or having Conflicts of Interest. 

 

Prospective Bidder:  

Entity which fulfills a 
Qualification 
Requirement: 

 

Relationship to 
Prospective Bidder: 

 

 

 
 
Republic of the Philippines ) 
    ) S.S. 
 

Certification of Absence of Unsatisfactory Performance Record 
 
I, (insert name), (insert citizenship), of legal age, with office address at (insert address), as the 

(insert position/designation) of (insert name of the entity represented), a (individual/ 

partnership/corporation/other juridical entity,) organized and existing under and by virtue of 
the laws of (insert place of incorporation/registration) hereby certify, for and on behalf of 
(name of entity represented), that, based on the best of my knowledge, (insert name of entity 

represented) does not have any record of unsatisfactory performance on any of its projects and 
contracts.  “Unsatisfactory Performance” means any of the following:  
 

1. within the last five (5) years prior to the Qualification Documents Submission Date  -  
 
a. failure to satisfactorily perform any of its material obligations on any contract, as 

evidenced by the imposition of a judicial pronouncement or arbitration award; 
 

b. expulsion from any project or contract; 
 

c. termination or suspension of any of its projects or contracts due to breach of its 
obligations; or  
 

d. material violation of laws and/or regulations applicable to any of its projects or 

http://www.worldbank.org/debarr
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contracts, including but not limited to environmental, health, safety, labor and 
social welfare laws and regulations. 

 
The projects and contracts referred to in paragraph 1 of the definition above refers to 
any project or contract of the entity or entities whose experience is being used to meet 
any of the Technical Qualification Requirements which was commenced or in the 
process of implementation within the last five (5) years before the Qualification 
Documents Submission Date, and not just to the particular projects or contracts being 
submitted to meet such Technical Qualification Requirements. 
 
Paragraph 1 of the definition above refers to any project or contract of the entity or 
entities whose experience is being proposed to meet any of the Technical 
Qualification Requirements and to the laws and/or regulations applicable to such 
projects or contracts. Paragraph 3 refers to the present Bidding for this Project. 

 
2. inclusion in a blacklist issued by any governmental agency of the Philippines or in the 

Debarred and Cross-Debarred Firms & Individuals list posted in the World Bank 
website (www.worldbank.org/debarr), whether as an individual contractor, 
partnership, corporation, or any other juridical entity, or as a member of a joint 
venture or consortium; or 
 

3. involvement in any Corrupt, Fraudulent, Coercive, Undesirable, or Restrictive 
Practice or having Conflicts of Interest. 

 

 

For and on behalf of (Name of Entity) 
 
(Signature of Authorized Representative) 
______________________________________ 
(Name) 
(Designation) 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this (____) day of (month and year) at (place), 
affiant exhibiting to me his/her (proof of identity acceptable under Philippine notarial 

regulations), issued at (city) on (date). 
 
     
      Notary Public 
Doc. No.: _________ 
Page No.: _________ 
Book No.: ________ 
Series of 2012.

http://www.worldbank.org/debarr
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ANNEX QD-4B: Notarized Certification of Absence of Unsatisfactory Performance 

Record (Joint) 

 
Republic of the Philippines ) 
    ) S.S. 
 

Certification of Absence of Unsatisfactory Performance Record 
 
I, (insert name), (insert citizenship), of legal age, with office address at (insert address), as the 
authorized representative of (insert name of entity represented), a 
(individual/corporation/partnership/other juridical entity, or Consortium) organized and existing 
under and by virtue of the laws of ([insert place of incorporation/registration] or organized by 

agreement among its Consortium Members), as indicated by the authorization certificate attached 
as [Annex QD-10A (for a partnership or corporation): Authority to Apply to Pre-Qualify and Bid 
and Designation of Authorized Representative] or Annex QD-10B (for a Consortium Prospective 
Bidder, to be submitted by each Consortium Member): Consortium Member’s Authority to 
Participate in Consortium and Apply to Pre-Qualify and Bid, and Designation of Lead Member 
and Authorized Representative of Consortium], after having been duly sworn according to law, 
hereby certify for and on behalf of (list the entities submitted in the Business Structure - Annex 

QD-1A or QD-1B) that, based on the best of my knowledge, the said entities do not have any 
record of unsatisfactory performance on any of its projects and contracts.  “Unsatisfactory 
Performance” means any of the following:  
 

1. within the last five (5) years prior to the Qualification Documents Submission Date  -  
 
a. failure to satisfactorily perform any of its material obligations on any contract, as 

evidenced by the imposition of a judicial pronouncement or arbitration award; 
 

b. expulsion from any project or contract; 
 

c. termination or suspension of any of its projects or contracts due to breach of its 
obligations; or  
 

d. material violation of laws and/or regulations applicable to any of its projects or 
contracts, including but not limited to environmental, health, safety, labor and social 
welfare laws and regulations. 

 
The projects and contracts referred to in paragraph 1 of the definition above refers to any 
project or contract of the entity or entities whose experience is being used to meet any of 
the Technical Qualification Requirements which was commenced or in the process of 
implementation within the last five (5) years before the Qualification Documents 
Submission Date, and not just to the particular projects or contracts being submitted to 
meet such Technical Qualification Requirements. 
 
Paragraph 1 of the definition above refers to any project or contract of the entity or 
entities whose experience is being proposed to meet any of the Technical Qualification 
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Requirements and to the laws and/or regulations applicable to such projects or contracts. 
Paragraph 3 refers to the present Bidding for this Project. 

 
2. inclusion in a blacklist issued by any governmental agency of the Philippines or in the 

Debarred and Cross-Debarred Firms & Individuals list posted in the World Bank website 
(www.worldbank.org/debarr), whether as an individual contractor, partnership, 
corporation, or any other juridical entity, or as a member of a joint venture or 
consortium; or 
 

3. involvement in any Corrupt, Fraudulent, Coercive, Undesirable, or Restrictive Practice or 
having Conflicts of Interest. 

 

Date and Place of Execution. 

 

For and on behalf of (Name of Entities) 
 
(Signature of Authorized Representative) 
______________________________________ 
(Name) 
(Designation) 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this (____) day of (month and year) at (place), 
affiant exhibiting to me his/her (proof of identity acceptable under Philippine notarial 

regulations), issued at (city) on (date). 
 
     
      Notary Public 
Doc. No.: _________ 
Page No.: _________ 
Book No.: ________ 
Series of 2012 

http://www.worldbank.org/debarr

